
alind
Cross-Out



Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

August 14, 2019 

Page 2 of 3 

3D. 

3E. 

South Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project (Federal Project No. CML-5187(010) 

ï Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe Contract

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an

agreement with Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe in an amount not to exceed $15,000.

Osborne Development Proposal CEQA Document Preparation ï Millennium Planning 

and Engineering Contract 

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement 

with Millennium Planning and Engineering for the Osborn Development project CEQA 

document in an amount not to exceed $21,100. 

*** End of the Consent Calendar *** 

4 PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject matter 

jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda.  Please make your comments as brief as possible; not to 

exceed three (3) minutes in length.  The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is 

required it will be referred to staff. 

5 COUNCIL STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and issues 

discussed at committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. 

If a member of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be 

placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

5A. Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ï All Councilmembers 

5B. City Operations Update ï City Manager 

5C. Agency Partner Reports 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS

6A. Contract Award for Culver Street Rehabilitation Project ï Phase I 
Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting a Resolution authorizing the City 

Manager to: 

1. Award a construction contract to Simpson and Simpson Inc. in the amount of $227,453

and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders up to the budgeted amount.

2. Adopt the total project budget for the Culver Street Rehabilitation Project – Phase I in

the amount of $307,045.

6B. City Clerk 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting a Resolution appointing Jaclyn Collier 

as City Clerk. 

6C. City Engineering Consultant Services 

Recommendation: Discuss and consider adopting a Resolution authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into a Contract Agreement with GHD for City Engineering services for a 

term of 3-year with an option for a 2-year extension. 

2



http://www.colfax-ca.gov/


(Page intentionally blank) 











City of Colfax 5 
City Council Minutes July 24, 2019 

6. COUNCIL BUSINESS

6A. Golden State Patient Care (GSPR) Commercial Cannabis Business Retail Annual 
Permit (Medicinal Only) 
City Manager Heathcock presented this item. He provided background on this item.  
He said staff is recommending the City of Colfax City Council issue GSPC a Retailer M-type 
(medicinal) License valid for 1-year from the date of issuance, which includes payment of the 
$8,000 annual fee used to reimburse SCI Consulting Group for on-going non-compliant 
mitigation services. 

Council Member Burruss asked about the resolutions not numbered in the staff report. 

City Manager Heathcock explained a new process in numbering the resolutions after 
adoption at Council to ensure an accurate numbering system. He spoke about the 
slight revision to procedures after partnership with Auburn for the City Clerk position. 

Public Comment: Will Stockwin, said he is in support and addressed the revenue issue. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 31-2019 authorizing the City Manager to 
issue a Commercial Cannabis Retail Type-M license valid for 1-year to Golden State 
Patient Care. 
The motion was made by Council Member Burruss and seconded by Council Member 
Lomen and approved by the following voice vote: 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Lomen, Fatula 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Mendoza 

6B.  City Council Regular Session Meeting Time Change 

City Attorney Mick Cabral presented this item. He said this decision is the discretion of 
the council, and addressed how closed session can occur either before or after regular 
sessions.   

A majority of the audience preferred a 6pm start time by show of hands. City Manager 
Heathcock said he spoke to Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza who said she supports the time 
change to 6pm. 

Public comment: 

Will Stockwin, said public comment will end up being around 6:30pm if there is a 6pm 
start time, he said he thinks this is too early and suggested moving public comment to 
later in the meeting to ensure public access to the council.  

City Manager Heathcock addressed restructuring of the agenda in the future should an 
issue arise. 

Council Member Burruss asked for agency reports to be moved up in the agenda. 



City of Colfax 6 
City Council Minutes July 24, 2019 

Nancy Hagman, spoke in favor of moving the meeting to 6pm, as iÔȭÓ on the way home 
for people and will result in more people attending. 

Mayor Fatula said he would like to try this on an experimental basis for the next 
quarter and put back on the agenda if it poses a problem.  

Amada Cline, expressed concern in notification to the public. She suggested Chamber, 
Newspaper, Colfax Connection, and service organizations.  

Conversation followed regarding notifying the Council subscription list, Mayors 
Corner, and the Chamber e-blast.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 32-2019 changing the time for 
commencement of regular Council meetings from 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.  with a review 
of this action in 3 months. 
The motion was made by Council Member Fatula and seconded by Council Member 
Douglass and approved by the following voice vote: 
AYES:  Burruss, Douglass, Fatula, Lomen 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  Mendoza 

9. GOOD OF THE ORDER

Council Member Lomen spoke about the PG&E workshops on the public safety power 

shutoff program. 

Council Member Douglass said the train caboose will be open during car show and art 

walk. 

Council Member Burruss said she would like on a future agenda the issue of micro 

business licensing for cannabis to look at extending it to a 3 or 5 year period to 

ensure efficiency, while piloting the medicinal retailer Type-M License. 

10. ADJOURNMENT

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Fatula adjourned the meeting, 
without objection, at 8:14 PM. 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 14th day of August, 2019 

__________________________________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 







City of Colfax

Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool

Quarterly Analysis π FY2018π2019
Report Date: 06/30/2019

Type of Investment Financial Institution

Date of 

Maturity

Investment 

Amount

% of Total 

Investment

Average 

Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 6,038,334$      97% 2.44%

Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 207,331$         3% 0.15%

Total Investment Pool 6,245,665$      100% 2.33%

Type of Investment Financial Institution

Date of 

Maturity

Investment 

Amount

% of Total 

Investment

Average 

Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 4,784,830$      96% 2.39%

Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 196,894$         4% 0.19%

Total Investment Pool 4,981,724$      100% 2.32%

Type of Investment Financial Institution

Date of 

Maturity

Investment 

Amount

% of Total 

Investment

Average 

Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 4,184,644$      92% 2.21%

Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 376,346$         8% 0.21%

Total Investment Pool 4,560,990$      100% 2.05%

Type of Investment Financial Institution

Date of 

Maturity

Investment 

Amount

% of Total 

Investment

Average 

Investment 

Yield

Investment Fund State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A 4,834,656$      96% 2.00%

Corporate Checking US Bank N/A 212,482$         4% 0.20%

Total Investment Pool 5,047,138$      100% 1.86%

Quarter Ended 06/30/2019

Quarter Ended 03/31/2019

Quarter Ended 12/31/2018

Quarter Ended 09/30/2018





https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/comments.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/disclaimer.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/privacy.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/accessibility.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/unclaimed.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/sitemap.asp
http://get.adobe.com/reader/
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/public.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/careers/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/inside/directory.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/pmia/contact.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/timedeposits/index.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/laif.asp
https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/index.asp




FOR THE AUGUST 14, 2019 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Subject: Bureau Veritas Contract Extension for Building Inspection Services 
Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   Funded: √ Un-funded: Amount:$108,000 Fund(s):100-400 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution __-2019 authorizing the City Manager to extend the

contract with Bureau Veritas for building inspection services on an as needed basis not to exceed 

$108,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 

Summary/Background 

The current contract with Bureau Veritas provides contract services for an onsite Building Inspector on 

an as needed basis.  Bureau Veritas is a respected leader in testing, inspection and certification 

services.  Bureau Veritas has successfully provided Colfax with the adequately trained inspectors to 

execute necessary inspection duties. The position is also available for code enforcement and nuisance 

abatement work.   

The current contract with Bureau Veritas requires approval from City Council to extend services on an 

ongoing, as needed basis beyond June 2019.  The contract services were approved in conjunction with 

Council budget discussions.   

Budget Impacts 

Funding is through the General Fund with revenue available with the City’s increasing building permit 

activity. The operating budget account is Fund 100-400.  

Attachments 
1. Resolution __-2019 
2. Bureau Veritas Contract Extension (5th Amendment to the Contract)
3. Bureau Veritas Contract 

)ÔÅÍ σ#

Staff Report to City Council 

17





FIFTH AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
COLFAX AND BUREAU VERITAS 

This Fifth Amendment to the Consultant Services Agreement ("Fifth Amendment") dated 
August 15, 2019 is entered into by and between the City of Colfax ("City") and Bureau Veritas 
("Consultant"). 

City and Consultant entered into that certain Consultant Services Agreement dated July 10, 
2015 ("Agreement"), whereby Consultant agreed to provide those services specified in the 
exhibits of the Agreement.  

City and Consultant now desire to amend the Agreement to extend the as needed contract 
through June 30, 2020, as provided in the approved Agreement authorized by the City Council 
with a not to exceed limit increase of $108,000 for fiscal year 2019-2020.  

Continuing Effect of Agreement. Except as amended by this Amendment, all provisions of 
the Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. From and after the date of 
this Amendment, whenever the term "Agreement" appears in the Agreement, it shall mean 
the Agreement as amended by this Amendment.  

CITY OF COLFAX BUREAU VERITAS 

Signature Signature 

Printed Name Printed Name 

Title Title 

Date Date 

Approved as to Form: 

___________________________ 
City Attorney 

19







22



23





























City of Colfax 
City Council 

Resolution № ͺͺ-2019 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 

COLFAX TODDS VALLEY CONSOLIDATED TRIBE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$15,000 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution 16-2019 authorizing Staff to award the South 

Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project construction to Granite Construction Company and 

established the project budget; and  

WHEREAS, under the Caltrans Cultural Resource Studies Office the project is required to have 
a cultural monitor; and 

WHEREAS, Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe is determined to be the “Closest Tribal 
Descendent” to provide cultural monitoring on new excavation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Colfax authorizes the City 
Manager to enter into an agreement with Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe in an amount 
not to exceed $15,000. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 14th day of August 2019, by the 
following vote of the Council: 

AYES: 

NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

______________________________________ 
Joe Fatula, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 

38















The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid by 

an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in 

full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual written consent of the parties. 

Section 19.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. 

This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive expression of 

the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All 

prior written and oral communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and 

representations, are superseded in total by this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or 

extended from time to time only by written agreement of the parties hereto. 

Section 20.  Time of the Essence. 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services. The Consultant will perform its Services 

with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices and shall devote such 

time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their timely completion.   

Section 21.  Written Notification. 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 

communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 

and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows.  

Either party may change its address by notifying the other party in writing of the change of address. 

Notice shall be deemed communicated within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed 

within the State of California as provided in this Section. 

If to City: City of Colfax 

33 S. Main Street 

Colfax, CA 95713 

If to Consultant: Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe 

P.O. Box 4884 

Auburn, CA 95604 

Section 22.  Execution. 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the 

same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original counterpart is 

signed by both parties hereto.  In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or 

account for more than one such counterpart. 

Section 23. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective 

parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 















P.O. Box 4884, Auburn Ca. 95604 

Pamela Cubbler Tribal Council Treasurer/Cultural Preservation-Monitor/MLD 

530-320-3943       PCubbler@colfaxrancheria.com 

52





























mailto:amy.feagans@colfax-ca.gov






d. Traffic_Technical Memo – A Traffic memo will be prepared by a selected
consultant discussing traffic based on the proposed use and anticipated trip rates
identified in the ITE Manual.

II. Compensation

Tasks A.1 – A.3  Project Initiation  $1,800 

Tasks B.1a – B1.n Draft Initial Study / MND  $6,500 

Task C.1  Final Revisions to IS / MND  $1,800 

Task D.1  Attend Public Hearing  $600 

Task E.1a  Air Quality / GHG Assessment $3,500 

Task E.1b  Biological Inventory  $2,000 

Task E.1c  Cultural Assessment  $2,900 

Task E.1d  Traffic-Technical Memo  $2,000 

Extra Services  

Services and/or costs which are not included in the scope of basic services or outlined 
below:   

A. Submittal fees / Recording Fees / Agency Fees

B. Additional Technical Studies/Reports not included herein

C. Additional meetings/hearings not included herein

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to provide these services and are available to answer any 
questions. 

Sincerely, 

Millennium Planning & Engineering 

Robert E. Wood, AICP 
Principal Planner 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED: 

By: Wes Heathcock, City Manager

(Signature) 

(Date) 













NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

_________________________________________ 

Joe Fatula, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk 



AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 15th day of August, 2019 by and between the 

City of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California (ñCityò) and Simpson & Simpson 

Inc. (ñContractorò.) 

RECITALS 

A. The City desires to retain Contractor to provide the Services set forth in detail in Exhibit A

hereto (the ñServicesò) subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

B. Contractor is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform the

Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in accordance with the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement, the City and Contractor agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Services. 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall furnish and perform 

all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 

(the ñServicesò) to the satisfaction of the City.  Contractor shall not perform any work exceeding the 

scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior written authorization from the City. 

Section 2.  Time of Completion. 

Contractorôs schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which is 

incorporated herein by this reference.  Contractor shall commence performance of the Services 

promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed. Performance of the Services shall 

progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A.  During the performance 

of the Services, Contractor shall provide the City with written progress reports at least once each 

month and at such additional intervals as City may from time to time request.  

Section 3.  Compensation. 

A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or its

exhibits, Contractor shall invoice City once each month for the Services performed during the

preceding month. Such invoices shall itemize all charges in such detail as may reasonably be

required by City in the usual course of City business but shall include at least (i) the date of

performance of each of the Services, (ii) identification of the person who performed the Services,

(iii) a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, (iv) the hourly rate at which the

Services on each date are charged, (v) an itemization of all costs incurred and (vi) the total charges

for the Services for the month invoiced. As long as the Contractor performs the Services to the

satisfaction of the City, the City shall pay the Contractor an all-inclusive compensation that shall

not exceed the amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change









Contractor shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the Cityôs prior 

written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this Agreement without 

the Cityôs prior written consent shall be void. 

Section 9.  Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Contractor as to those matters 

contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect 

to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing 

signed by both parties. 

Section 10.  Jurisdiction. 

This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of California.  

Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the State 

of California with venue in Placer County, California.   

Section 11.  Suspension of Services. 

Upon written request by Contractor, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the Services 

if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Contractor make normal progress of 

the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible. Upon written City approval to suspend 

performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services shall be extended by the number 

of days performance of the Services is suspended.   

Section 12.  Termination of Services. 

City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and this 

Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Contractor.  Upon receipt of notice of termination, 

Contractor shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  Contractor shall be 

entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up to the date of receipt of the 

written notice of termination. Contractor shall not be entitled to payment for any Services performed 

after the receipt of the notice of termination unless such payment is authorized in advance in writing 

by the City. 

Should Contractor fail to perform any of the obligations required of Contractor within the time and in 

the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should Contractor violate any of the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate this Agreement by providing Contractor 

with seven (7) days written notice of such termination.  The Contractor shall be compensated for all 

Services performed prior to the date of receipt of the notice of termination. However, the City may 

deduct from the compensation which may be owed to Contractor the amount of damage sustained or 

estimated by City resulting from Contractorôs breach of this Agreement.  

Contractorôs obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive termination, 

and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of Sections 5 and 6.  









Section 23.  Execution. 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the 

same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original counterpart is 

signed by both parties hereto.  In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or 

account for more than one such counterpart. 

Section 24. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective 

parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 

Section 25. Attorneyôs Fees.  If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce 

any of its terms or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 

its reasonable attorneyôs fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such fees 

costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first above 

written: 

CITY  CONTRACTOR 

Signature Signature 

Printed Name Printed Name  

Title  Title 

Date   Date 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney 











City of Colfax 2 

Staff Report August 14, 2019 City Engineering Consultant Services 

¶ City compliance with all Federal, State, County and local laws and regulations.
¶ Manage projects that are Federally, State, or County funded following required policies

including Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual.
¶ Monitors and makes recommendations in relation to changes in laws, regulations and

technology that may affect City operations; implements policy and procedural changes as
required.

¶ Prepares, reviews, and, presents staff reports and City engineering documents and
reports on various projects and programs and attend City Council meetings as necessary.

¶ Review and comment on planning programs and land development controls.
¶ Provide emergency response in time of unusual weather and other disaster such as

flooding, earthquake, etc.
¶ Provide utility interface as necessary with PG&E, cable, and other utility companies
¶ Perform right-of-way engineering, mapping, and surveying as required.
¶ Construction management, inspection, and related support services as required.

The city engineering service will be an adjunct to the City staff on an as needed base to provide 
the aforementioned services. 

The City Engineer RFQ submittal deadline was June 20, 2019 for interested consulting firms. The 
City received 5 Statement of Qualifications (SOQ) from interested consultant firms. Staff utilized 
evaluation criteria to rank the SOQ with the intentions to interview the top consultant firms. The 
initial ranking committee recommended interviewing GHD, Bennett Engineering, and Interwest 
on July 16, 2019. 

The interview panel consisted of the City Manager, the Community Services Director, and the 
Accounting Technician utilizing an interview/presentation style forum to rank the final 
consulting firms. Based on the interview process results, staff is recommending entering into a 3-
year contract with GHD with an option for a 2-year extension.  

Budget Impacts 

The contract award is based on services provided through the on-call city engineering services 

with GHD on actual adopted budget amounts and reimbursable projects. The potential cost for 

the City over a 3-year contract term is $210,000 from various funds, which include funds 100-

425, 100-120, 250, 560, and 561. 

Attachments 
1. Resolution __-2019 
2. Service Agreement
3. Service Rate Sheet 
4. GHD Presentation 

89







190725 Engineering Services Agreement Page 2 

GHD CITY OF COLFAX  

A Municipal Corporation 

______________________________ ____________________________ 

Doug Ries, Principal in Charge Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________ _____________________________ 

Amy Lind, Interim City Clerk  Alfred Cabral, City Attorney  













190725 Engineering Services Agreement Page 8 

CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

EXHIBIT C 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. Independent Contractor.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall

be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City.  City shall have the

right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered

pursuant to this Agreement; however, City shall not have the right to control the means by

which consultant accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.

2. Licenses, Permits, etc.  Consultant represents to City that it has all licenses, permits,

qualifications and approval of whatsoever nature that are legally required for Consultant to

practice its profession.  Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant shall, at

its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the term of this

Agreement any licenses permits and approval which are legally required for Consultant to

practice its profession at the time the services are performed.

3. Time.  Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this

Agreement as may be reasonably necessary for satisfactory performance of Consultant's

obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  Neither party shall be considered in default of this

Agreement to the extent performance is prevented or delayed by a cause, present or future,

which is beyond the reasonable control of the party.

4. Indemnification.  Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without

limitation the cost and duty to defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and

against any and all claims, demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to,

or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents

in the performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for

death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole

negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, servants

employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly responsible to

the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, employees or

volunteers.

It is understood that the duty of CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes

the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.

5. Insurance.

(1) General Liability. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full

force and affect a general liability insurance policy in an amount not less than

$1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

(2) Automobile Liability. During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in



190725 Engineering Services Agreement Page 9 

full force and affect a policy of automobile liability insurance in an amount not less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

¶ The City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers are to be named as

additional insured on the Consultant's general liability and automobile liability

insurance policies.

¶ Consultant's general liability and automobile liability insurance coverage shall be

primary insurance with respect to the City, its officers, officials, employees and

volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers,

officials, employees and volunteers shall be in excess of Consultant's insurance and

shall not contribute with it.

(3) Professional Liability.  During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain

in full force and effect professional liability insurance for protection against claims

alleging negligent acts, errors or omissions which may arise from Consultant's

operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by Consultant or by its

employees, subcontractors or sub-consultants.  The amount of this insurance shall not

be less than $1,000,000 per claim and $2,000,000 aggregate on a claims-made annual

aggregate basis.

(4) Cancellation.  Each insurance policy or certificate of insurance required in this

paragraph shall not be canceled except after thirty (30) days written notice has been

received by the City.  Current certification of such insurance shall be kept on file with

the City Clerk at all times during the term of this Agreement.

6. Worker's Compensation.  During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall fully

comply with the terms of the law of California concerning Worker's Compensation.  Said

compliance shall include, but not be limited to, maintaining in full force and effect one or

more policies of insurance insuring against any liability Consultant may have for Worker's

Compensation.  The Worker's Compensation Policy shall contain a waiver by the insurer

of all rights of subrogation against the City, its officers, agents and employees.

7. Consultant Not Agent.  Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no

authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an

agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement to

bind City to any obligation whatsoever.

8. Assignment Prohibited.  No party to this Agreement may assign any right or obligation

pursuant to this Agreement.  Any attempted or purported assignment of any right or

obligation pursuant to this Agreement shall be void and of no effect.

9. Personnel.  Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant

to this Agreement.  In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term

of this Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persons assigned by Consultant to

perform services pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant shall remove any such person

immediately upon receiving notice from City of the desire of City for the removal of such

99



190725 Engineering Services Agreement Page 10 

person or persons. 

10. Standard of Performance.  Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this

Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent

practitioner of the profession in which consultant is engaged in the geographical area in

which Consultant practices its profession.  All work products of whatsoever nature which

Consultant delivers to City pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared in a professional

manner and conform to the standards or quality normally observed by a person practicing in

Consultant's profession.

11. City Representatives.  The City Manager or designee is the representative of the City and

will administer this Agreement for the City.

12. Termination.  This Agreement may be canceled upon thirty (30) days written notification

by either party without cause.  Consultant shall be entitled to receive full payment for all

services performed and all costs incurred to the date of termination of the contract.

Consultant shall be entitled to no further compensation for work performed after the date of

termination of the contract.  All completed and uncompleted products up to the date of

termination of the contract shall become the property of the City.

13. Non-Discrimination.  Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the Services, including without

limitation laws requiring licensing and prohibiting discrimination in employment because of

race, creed, color, sex, age, marital status, physical or mental disability, national origin or other

prohibited bases.  City shall not be responsible or liable for Consultant’s failure to comply

with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules or regulations

14. Ownership of Information.  It is mutually agreed that all materials prepared by the

Consultant under this Contract shall become the property of the City, and the Consultant

shall have no property right therein whatsoever.  Immediately upon termination, the City

shall be entitled to, and the Consultant shall deliver to the City, all data, drawings,

specifications, reports, estimates, summaries and other such materials  as may have been

prepared or accumulated to date by the Consultant in performing this Contract which is not

Consultant's privileged information, as defined by law, or Consultant's personnel

information

This agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for Consultant to copy, use, 

modify, reuse, or sublicense any and all copyrights, designs, and other intellectual property 

embodied in plans, specifications, studies, drawings, estimates, and other documents or 

works of authorship fixed in any tangible medium of expression, including but not limited 

to, physical drawings or data magnetically or otherwise recorded on computer portable 

storage device, which are prepared or caused to be prepared by Consultant pursuant to this 

Agreement.  Consultant shall not be limited in any way in its use of such documents and 

data at any time, provided that any such use not within the purposes intended by this 

Agreement shall be at Consultant's sole risk and that Consultant shall indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers 

from any claims arising out of Consultant's use of such documents and data for any project 





190725 Engineering Services Agreement Page 12 

MEDIATION/ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES 

Any controversy between the parties involving the construction, application or performance of any 

of the terms, provisions or conditions of this agreement shall, on the written request of either party 

served on the other, be submitted to mediation before a mediator acceptable to all parties.  The 

mediation shall occur within 45 days of the initial request, unless extended by agreement of the 

parties.  Should any party commence arbitration or court action based on a dispute or claim to 

which this Section applies, without first attempting to resolve the matter through mediation, then 

that party shall not be entitled to recover attorney fees, even if they would otherwise be available to 

that party in any such action or arbitration.  

If the mediation is unsuccessful, either party may, within five (5) days thereafter, serve a written 

request on the other demanding that the matter be submitted to binding arbitration.  

Exceptions to Mediation/Arbitration.  Neither mediation, nor arbitration is required under the 

following limited circumstances:  the matter is justifiable in small claims court, than the dispute 

shall be resolved through that court.  

If the controversy to be arbitrated also involves third parties who are not willing to submit the 

matter to arbitration, and multiple proceedings would result from enforcement of this arbitration 

clause, then the dispute shall be resolved through the courts without referral to arbitration.  

If it is alleged that irreparable harm would occur prior to the completion of the arbitration, a party 

may immediately apply for injunctive relief to prevent the irreparable harm, but the matter shall be 

stayed and submitted to mediation/arbitration after the Court has acted on the issue of injunctive 

relief.   

Except as provided herein, Arbitration shall comply with and be governed by the provisions of the 

California Arbitration Act, Section 1280 et.seq. of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  

Upon receipt of a notice of intent to arbitrate, the parties shall mutually agree on an arbitrator within 

15 days.  If they are unable to agree on a single arbitrator, each party shall appoint another 

individual as a selection arbitrator and the two selection arbitrators shall select a third impartial 

arbitrator to decide the matter within 30 days of notice of arbitration.  If for any reason this process 

fails to result in the selection of an impartial arbitrator in a timely manner, either party may petition 

the Court for appointment of an arbitrator pursuant to CCP 1281.6.  

The decision of the Arbitrator, after close of the hearing, shall be final and conclusive upon the 

parties.  

The parties agree to do all acts necessary to expedite the arbitration proceedings such that the 

matter can be arbitrated within 90 days of service of the notice of intent to arbitrate.  

Upon a showing of good cause and the approval of the arbitrator, either party may obtain discovery 

necessary for the proof of their case.  Provided that the arbitrator shall supervise the discovery 

process to insure that it is carried out in an expeditious manner and that it is not permitted to be 

















Key Staff | Project Team

Larry Wing, PE
City Engineer

43 Years of Experience

Heather Anderson, PE
Capital Improvement 

Program Manager 

12 Years of Experience

H. Ross Ainsworth,
PE, TE

Traffic Engineering Manager

52 Years of Experience

Matt Weber, PE
Wastewater Manager

27 Years of Experience

Joe Patterson, PE
Construction Services Manager

14 Years of Experience

Carl Moore, PE, LEED AP
Land Development Manager

20 Years of Experience

Chris Trumbull, PE, GE, 
DGE

Geotechnical/Pavement 

Rehabilitation Manager 

30 Years of Experience

Douglas Ries, PE
Principal-in-Charge

31 Years of Experience













Ability to Respond Quickly

City Engineer Process

• From my experience as a City Engineer:

• Each days activities will vary depending on your

needs

• Availability daily to respond to the City Manager,

citizen’s, and other agency requests for

information or action

• I highly recommend communication start with the

City Manager for City Council requests and be

funneled by him to the City Engineer

We recommend you contact our reference Lynn Toth,
Land Development Engineer, City of Rocklin, (916) 625-5568  

City
Council

City
Manager

City
Engineer

Recommended 
Communication Flow 



Ability to Respond Quickly

City Engineer Availability

• Propose to be on-site at City two days a week

• During daily office hours will be available, as needed

Primary contacts when Mr. Wing is unavailable:

• Ross Ainsworth, PE, TE

• Heather Anderson, PE

There will always be
someone to assist you!





Approach to Services

Task Order Authorization





Approach to Services

Construction Services 

To ensure innovative, yet sound, construction services

we have the following goals:

1. Cost - Best value for your dollar, within budget

2. Schedule - Projects delivered within your time-frames

3. Quality - Delivery of final product as planned by the 

scope (drawings, specifications, and contract 

documents)

Surveying

UNICO Engineering offers:

• GPS and mapping services

• Digital orthophotography

• Internet-based mapping and GIS

• Topographical surveys 

• Boundary surveys (property/lot split)

• Construction surveys/staking 

• Aerial surveys and mapping 

• Underground utilities-related services 

• Legal descriptions 



Approach to Services

Capital Improvement Program Development/Planning

• Transportation Systems

• Roundabouts

• Local street improvements

• Sidewalk/ADA Compliance

• Safe Route to Schools

• Multimodal access

• Developer impacts

• Pavement rehabilitation

• Rail crossings and stations

• Interchange projects

• Bridge replacements/realignments



















Grant Program Opportunities 

Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs 

• Emergency Relief Program

• Highway Bridge Program

• Highway Safety Improvement Program

• Intelligent Transportation Systems

• Other Federal Programs

State Programs 

• Active Transportation Program

• Bike Program

• Safe Route To School Programs

• State Transportation Improvement Program












	Quarterly Investment Report - QE 6-30-19.pdf
	SR Quarterly Investment Report - QE 06.30.19
	FY2019-Q4-06.30.19 Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool
	PMIA - LAIF Performance Report 06.30.19
	PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 06.30.19

	BV Contract Extension 5th Amendment.pdf
	1 Bureau Veritas Contract for Building Inspection Services Staff Report
	2 Bureau Veritas Contract Extension for Building Inspection Services  Resolution
	3 Bureau Veritas 5th Amendment
	4 Bureau Veritas Fully Executed Contract Building Inspection Services

	S Auburn - I-80 Roundabout Project - CTVCTC.pdf
	Staff Report - S. Auburn Street and I-80 Roundabout Project
	S. Auburn Street  I-80 Roundabout Project Resolution
	Colfax Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe Consultant Agreement
	S. Auburn Street  I-80 Roundabout Project Contract Exhibit A
	S. Auburn Street  I-80 Roundabout Project Contract Exhibit A (Fees)

	Osborn Development Proposal CEQA.pdf
	190814 IS Consultant SR 7-14-19 Staff Report
	190814 IS Consultant SR 7-14-19 Resolution
	19-0105 Proposal_Price_Colfax Commercial Building

	Culver St Rehab Project Phase I - Contract Award.pdf
	2019-Staff Report Contract Award
	Resolution Culver Street Contract Award
	Contractor Agreement
	Culver St Bid Simpson and Simpson

	City Clerk 8 14 19.pdf
	City Clerk Staff Report
	190814 City Clerk Resolution

	GHD City Engineering Consultant Services Agreement Staff Report & Attachments.pdf
	190814 GHD presentation City Engineering Services.pdf
	City Engineering�Services��City of Colfax������Larry Wing, PE�Project Manager�
	Slide Number 2
	About GHD 
	Services & Resources 
	Slide Number 5
	Key Staff | Project Team
	Organization�Chart
	City Engineer Profile
	Slide Number 9
	We know the local agencies
	Coordinating with your Departments 
	Ability to Respond Quickly
	Ability to Respond Quickly
	Approach to Services
	Approach to Services
	Approach to Services 
	Approach to Services
	Approach to Services
	Approach to Services 
	Approach to Services
	Approach to Services 
	Approach to Services
	Approach to Services
	 Approach to Services
	Approach to Services
	Slide Number 26
	Grant Program Opportunities 
	Recent Wastewater Grants 
	Recent Transportation Grants
	Why Choose
	Slide Number 31
	Slide Number 32
	City of Colfax Wastewater Treatment Plant
	Approach to Services
	Wastewater Engineering
	City of Rocklin On-Call City Engineer/City Surveyor Services
	City of Placerville Interim City Engineering Services
	City of Rocklin On-Call Development Projects Plan Review Services
	City of Alturas On-Call City Engineering
	City of Rio Dell City Engineering Services


	Osborn Development Proposal CEQA - Update Version.pdf
	190814 IS Consultant SR 7-14-19 Staff Report
	190814 IS Consultant SR 7-14-19 Resolution
	Millennium CEQA Contractor Agrmnt 8-14-19
	19-0105 Proposal_Price_Colfax Commercial Building




